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Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: Commission for Public Health-Request for Changes

 

From: Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 3:44 PM 
To: Niehaus, Virginia <virginia.niehaus@dhhs.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: Commission for Public Health-Request for Changes 
 
Thank you for letting us know.   
 
Alex, will you please send the listed people a Webex invite? 
 
Thanks, 
 
Travis C. Wiggs 
Rules Review Commission Counsel 
OƯice of Administrative Hearings 
Telephone: 984-236-1929 
Email: travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov 
 

From: Niehaus, Virginia <virginia.niehaus@dhhs.nc.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 3:38 PM 
To: Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: Commission for Public Health-Request for Changes 
 
Hi Travis, 
 
I have submiƩed the rules. I am planning to aƩend in person next Wednesday.  
 
Please also send a Webex invitaƟon to the following individuals: 
virginia.niehaus@dhhs.nc.gov 
hhemingway@ncdoj.gov 
larry.michael@dhhs.nc.gov 
jon.fowlkes@dhhs.nc.gov 
shane.smith@dhhs.nc.gov 
 
Thank you, 
Virginia 
 
Virginia R. Niehaus, JD, MPH 
Director of Regulatory and Legal Affairs 
Division of Public Health 
NC Department of Health and Human Services 
Pronouns: she/her/hers 
 
Executive Assistant: Michelle Zarate 
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NCDHHS provides essential services to improve the health, safety and well-being of all North Carolinians. Learn 
more about NCDHHS initiatives and priorities. 
 
Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties. 
__________________________________________________________  
           
Twitter | Facebook | Instagram | YouTube | LinkedIn 

Unauthorized disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged, or otherwise confidential information, including confidential information relating to an ongoing State 
procurement effort, is prohibited by law. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this e-mail. 

 

From: Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 3:16 PM 
To: Niehaus, Virginia <virginia.niehaus@dhhs.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: Commission for Public Health-Request for Changes 
 
Virginia, 
 
Thank you for making the requested change.   
 
As mentioned,  please submit the revised rules via email to oah.rules@oah.nc.gov no later than 5pm on March 22, 
2024.  The electronic copy must be saved as the oƯicial rule name  (XX NCAC XXXX).  Please include me on the 
email. 
 
Are you or a representative from your agency planning to attend the RRC meeting next Wednesday?   
 
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
Attachments: 15A NCAC 18A .2518-revised.docx

 

From: Niehaus, Virginia <virginia.niehaus@dhhs.nc.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 11:25 AM 
To: Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: Commission for Public Health-Request for Changes 
 
Hi Travis, 
 
Apologies for the delayed response. We have made the requested change in the aƩached.  
 
It is great news that you intend to recommend approval. Once you’ve had an opportunity to review the aƩached, I will 
submit the revised rules as instructed below.  
 
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
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15A NCAC 18A .2518 is readopted with changes as published in 38:11 NCR 724-729 as follows: 1 

 2 

CHAPTER 18 - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 3 

 4 

SUBCHAPTER 18A - SANITATION 5 

 6 

SECTION .2500 - PUBLIC SWIMMING POOLS  7 

 8 

15A NCAC 18A .2518 CIRCULATION SYSTEM 9 

(a)  Public swimming pools Pools shall be equipped with a water circulation system. 10 

(b)  The water capacity of the circulation system shall be sufficient to clarify and disinfect circulate and filter the entire 11 

volume of public swimming pool water four times or more in 24 hours. The water circulation system shall be operated 12 

24 hours per day at no more than the maximum velocity allowed under Paragraph (d) of this Rule during the operating 13 

dates set out in the permit. season. 14 

(c)  The water circulation system piping shall be designed and installed with the necessary valves and pipes so that 15 

the flow from the public swimming pool shall can be from main drains or the surface overflow system. If both main 16 

drains and a surface overflow system are used, the The water circulation system piping shall be designed such that the 17 

flow of water from the public swimming pool is can be simultaneous from the surface overflow system and the main 18 

drains. Skimmer piping constructed after May 1, 2010 shall be sized to handle the maximum flow rate for the required 19 

number of skimmers, but in no case less than 100 percent of the design flow rate. rate determined by the Registered 20 

Design Professional in the pool design. Perimeter overflow system piping constructed after May 1, 2010 shall be sized 21 

to handle 100 percent of the design flow rate. rate determined by the Registered Design Professional in the pool design. 22 

The main Main drain piping constructed after May 1, 2010 shall be sized to handle 100 percent of the design flow 23 

rate. rate determined by the Registered Design Professional in the pool design. 24 

(d)  Piping shall be designed to reduce friction losses to a minimum and to carry the required quantity of water at a 25 

maximum velocity not to exceed six feet per second for suction piping and not to exceed 10 feet per second for 26 

discharge piping piping, except for copper pipe where the velocity shall not exceed eight feet per second for discharge 27 

piping. second. Piping shall comply with NSF/ANSI Standard 14 Plastics Piping System Components and Related 28 

Materials, incorporated by reference, including any subsequent amendments or editions, and available at 29 

http://webstore.ansi.org/ at a cost of one hundred sixty-five dollars ($165.00), be of non-toxic [material] material, 30 

resistant to corrosion, and be free of visible water leaks. able to withstand operating pressures. If plastic Public 31 

swimming pools constructed after the effective date of this Rule shall use plastic pipe made of is used, a minimum of 32 

Schedule 40 PVC. PVC is required. Flexible pipe shall not be used used, except that flexible PVC hoses that meet the 33 

requirements of NSF/ANSI/CAN NSF Standard 50 Equipment and Chemicals for Swimming Pools, Spas, Hot Tubs, 34 

and Other Recreational Water Facilities, incorporated by reference, including any subsequent amendments or editions, 35 

and available at http://webstore.ansi.org/ at a cost of five hundred eighty dollars ($580.00) (hereinafter referred to as 36 

"NSF Standard 50"), may be used when affixed to spa shells and where rigid pipes do not provide the necessary angles 37 
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to connect water circulation system components. Exposed pipes and valves shall be identified by a color code with a 1 

legend or labels. 2 

(e)  The water circulation system shall have include a strainer with a basket to prevent hair, lint, and other debris from 3 

reaching the pump. A The owner of the public swimming pool shall keep a spare strainer basket onsite at the public 4 

swimming pool. shall be provided. Strainers shall be designed for use in pools corrosion-resistant with openings not 5 

more than ¼ inch (6.4 mm) in size that provide a free flow area at least four times the cross-section area of the pump 6 

suction line and are accessible for daily cleaning. 7 

(f)  A swimming pool shall have a vacuum cleaning system shall be provided to remove debris and foreign material 8 

that settles to the bottom of the swimming pool. Where provided, integral Integral vacuum ports shall be located on 9 

the pool wall at least six inches and no greater than 18 inches below the water level. Skimmer vacuums may be used 10 

in pools with when connected to two or fewer skimmers that are isolated from the remaining water circulation system 11 

piping. provided the skimmer basket remains in place while the vacuum is in operation. Integral vacuum cleaning 12 

systems shall have be provided with valves and protective caps. Integral vacuum ports constructed after May 1, 2010 13 

shall have self-closing caps designed to be opened with a tool. Portable vacuum equipment may be used to meet the 14 

requirements of this Rule. 15 

(g)  A flow meter, rate-of-flow indicator, reading in liters or gallons per minute, shall be installed in accordance with 16 

the manufacturer’s instructions. on the filtered water [line.] line and located so that the rate of circulation is indicated. 17 

The flow meter indicator shall measure be capable of measuring flows that are at least 1½ times the between the 18 

minimum circulation turnover rate required in Paragraph (b) of this Rule and the maximum velocity permitted under 19 

Paragraph (d) of this Rule design flow rate, [rate determined by the Registered Design Professional in the pool design] 20 

and shall be accurate within 10 percent per cent of true flow. flow, and shall be easy to read. The [flow meter] indicator 21 

shall be installed in accordance with manufacturers' specifications. 22 

(h)  A public swimming pool shall have a pump or pumps shall be provided with capacity to recirculate the public 23 

swimming pool water four times or more in 24 hours, hours. The pump or pumps shall not need to be primed, [primed 24 

or] and shall be so located as to eliminate the need for priming. If the pump or pumps, or suction piping is located 25 

above the overflow level of the pool, the pump or pumps shall be self-priming. self-priming, or shall utilize an 26 

automated priming device labeled for use in public pools by the manufacturer. The pump or pumps shall be capable 27 

of providing a flow adequate for the backwashing of filters. Unless headloss calculations are provided by the designing 28 

engineer, Any single speed pump design shall be capable of maintaining required water turnover based on headloss 29 

calculations provided by a professional engineer licensed under G.S. Chapter [89C or] 89C, the measurements of a 30 

flow meter installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions, or an assumed total dynamic head of 65 feet 31 

of water. Any variable speed pump or single speed pump utilizing a variable frequency drive shall be capable of 32 

maintaining water turnover as required by Paragraph (b) of this Rule based on a pump performance curve provided 33 

by the manufacturer and shall maintain the flow rate determined by the Registered Designed Professional in the pool 34 

design. Pumps three horsepower or smaller shall be certified by NSF International as meeting NSF Standard 50 (NSF) 35 

listed or verified by an independent third-party testing laboratory to meet all applicable provisions of NSF NSF/ANSI 36 

Standard 50 applicable to pumps. which is incorporated by reference including any subsequent amendments or 37 
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editions. Copies may be obtained from NSF International, P.O. Box 130140, Ann Arbor, MI 48113-0140 at a cost of 1 

one hundred fifty-five dollars ($155.00). Verification conducted by an independent third-party testing laboratory shall 2 

include testing and in-plant quality control inspections. Larger pumps for which NSF listing is not available shall be 3 

approved by the Department on a case-by-case basis. 4 

(i)  Inlets. All public swimming pools shall be equipped with water return inlets. The water return inlets shall meet the 5 

following requirements: 6 

(1) Inlets shall be provided and arranged to The water return inlets shall produce a uniform circulation 7 

of water and maintain a uniform disinfectant residual throughout the pool. pool; 8 

(2) The number of inlets for any swimming pool shall be determined based on return water flow. There 9 

shall be at least one water return inlet per 20 gallons per minute of return water flow with flow. 10 

There shall be a minimum of four water return inlets for any swimming pool. pool; [and] 11 

(3) Inlets Water return inlets shall be located so that no part of the swimming pool is more than then 25 12 

feet of horizontal distance from the nearest water return inlet. inlet; and 13 

(4) Water return inlets shall be replaced when damaged or missing. Provision shall be made to permit 14 

adjustment of the flow through each inlet, either with an adjustable orifice or provided with 15 

replaceable orifices to permit adjustments of the flows. 16 

(j)  Drains. Drains shall not be required in public swimming pools when an alternate method to drain the pool is 17 

provided. Public swimming pools constructed without main drains shall be designed with water return inlets positioned 18 

to return water uniformly throughout the public swimming pool. Public swimming pools constructed with main drains 19 

shall have the main drains installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and meet the following 20 

requirements: 21 

(1) Public Swimming swimming pools with suction main drains shall be provided with at least one or 22 

more unblockable drains or two or more main drain outlets drains which are located at the deepest 23 

section of the pool on a horizontal plane and connected by symmetrical "T" piping. Except when 24 

unblockable drains are used, Connecting piping between main drains shall be sized and configured 25 

such that blocking any one drain will not result in flow through the remaining drain covers 26 

cover/grates exceeding the cover/grate manufacturer's safe flow rating while handling 100 percent 27 

of the pump’s maximum pump system flow. The drains shall be capable of permitting the pool to 28 

be emptied completely. Drains Dual main drains connected by "T" piping shall be spaced not more 29 

than 30 feet apart, and not more than 15 feet away from the side walls of the pool, walls. Drains 30 

Main Drains shall be separated by at least three feet measured from the centers of the drain covers 31 

or installed with one main drain on a horizontal plane and one main drain on a vertical plane. 32 

cover/grates. Main drains with two or more outlets with a common suction line shall not be equipped 33 

with valves that allow the outlets to be isolated. This shall not preclude construction of a public 34 

swimming pool without main drains where water is introduced at the bottom of the pool and 35 

removed through a surface overflow system designed to handle 100 percent of the design flow rate. 36 

Provision shall be made to completely drain pools constructed without drains. Public swimming 37 
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pools constructed prior to May 1, 2010 with a single drain or multiple drains closer than three feet 1 

apart shall protect against bather entrapment with an unblockable drain cover or a secondary method 2 

of preventing bather entrapment in accordance with Rule .2539 of this Section. 3 

(2) Drain outlets shall comply with the ANSI/APSP/ICC-16 2017 American National Standard 4 

ASME/ANSI A112.19.8-2007 for Suction Outlet Fittings Assemblies (SOFA) for Use in Swimming 5 

Pools, Wading Pools, Spas, and Hot Tubs, Tubs which is hereby incorporated by reference 6 

reference, including any subsequent amendments, amendments or editions, and successor standards 7 

under the Virginia Graeme Baker Pool and Spa Safety Act (15 U.S.C. 8001 et seq.). Copies available 8 

at https://webstore.ansi.org/ at a cost of one hundred sixty-five [dollars.] dollars ($165.00). may be 9 

obtained from ASME, P.O. Box 2300, Fairfield, NJ 07007-2300 at a cost of fifty-three dollars 10 

($53.00). 11 

(3) Public swimming pools pool drains constructed after May 1, 2010 shall comply with ANSI/APSP -12 

7 2006 American National Standard for ANSI/PHTA/ICC-7 2020 American National Standard for 13 

Suction Entrapment Avoidance in Swimming Pools, Wading Pools, Spas, Hot Tubs and Catch 14 

Basins, Basins which is hereby incorporated by reference reference, including any subsequent 15 

amendments and or editions, and editions. Copies may be obtained available at 16 

https://webstore.ansi.org at a cost of one hundred and sixty-five dollars ($165.00) (hereinafter 17 

referred to as "ANSI/PHTA/ICC-7"). from APSP, 2111 Eisenhower Avenue, Alexandria, VA 22314 18 

at a cost of three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00). 19 

(k)  Surface Overflow Systems. (1) Swimming Public swimming pools shall be provided with have a surface overflow 20 

system that is an integral part of the water circulation system and that consists of a built-in-place perimeter overflow 21 

system, a pre-fabricated perimeter overflow system, or recessed automatic surface skimmers. The surface overflow 22 

system shall comply with the following: 23 

(2)(1) Whenever When a public swimming pool uses a built-in-place perimeter overflow system or a pre-24 

fabricated perimeter overflow system system, the public swimming pool may be designed with the 25 

operating water level, perimeter overflow system, and deck at the same elevation. The perimeter 26 

overflow system shall: is provided, it shall be designed and installed as follows: 27 

(A) The system shall be Be capable of handling 100 percent of the circulation flow rate 28 

determined by the Registered Design Professional in the pool design without flooding the 29 

overflow troughs; troughs being flooded; 30 

(B) A surge capacity shall be provided either in the system or by use of Be capable of handling 31 

a water surge tank; and the total surge capacity shall be at least equal to one gallon per 32 

square foot foot, (41L or forty-one liters per square [meter] meter, meter) of swimming 33 

pool water surface area; area. A surge tank may be used to meet this requirement; 34 

(C) The Be capable of maintaining the water level of the swimming pool shall be maintained 35 

above the level of the overflow rim of the perimeter overflow overflows, system, except 36 

for the time intervals of no more needed to transfer all of the water that may be in the surge 37 
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capacity back into the swimming pool after a period of use; provided that this transfer time 1 

shall not be greater than 20 minutes; minutes when water is transferred between a surge 2 

tank and the public swimming pool; 3 

(D) When installed the Be constructed so the dimensional tolerance of the overflow rim shall 4 

not exceed ¼ inch (6.4 mm) as measured between the highest point and the lowest point of 5 

the overflow rim; 6 

(E) During quiescence, the overflow system shall be Be capable of providing continuously and 7 

automatically continuous and automatic a skimming action to of the water during 8 

quiescence; at the surface of the swimming pool; 9 

(F) The overflow troughs shall be Be constructed so that the overflow troughs are installed 10 

continuously completely around the perimeter of the public swimming pool, except at 11 

steps, recessed ladders ladders, and stairs; stairs, or except when used in combination with 12 

recessed automatic surface skimmers; and 13 

(G) The Provide a hand-hold on the exposed surfaces of the overflow trough. trough shall be 14 

capable of providing a firm and safe hand-hold; and 15 

(H) The overflow trough shall be cleanable and shall be of such configuration as to minimize 16 

accidental injury. 17 

(3)(2) Whenever a recessed When a public swimming pool uses recessed automatic surface skimmer or 18 

skimmers skimmers, are installed, they [as an overflow system,] the recessed automatic surface 19 

skimmers shall be designed and constructed in accordance with Section 8 of NSF Standard #50 50 20 

requirements for water circulation system components for swimming pools, spas, or hot tubs. tubs 21 

and Recessed automatic surface skimmers shall be installed as follows: 22 

(A) The rate of water flowing flow-through rate through any one recessed automatic surface 23 

skimmer shall be between no less than 20 gallons per minute and no more than the 24 

maximum flow the skimmer is certified for to handle under NSF Standard Number 50; 25 

(B) There shall be at least one recessed automatic surface skimmer for each 400 square feet of 26 

water surface area of the swimming pool or fraction thereof; 27 

(C) When two or more recessed automatic surface skimmers are required, they shall be so 28 

located as to minimize interference with each other and as to insure proper and complete 29 

to enable skimming of the entire swimming pool pools water surface; and 30 

(D) Skimmers shall not protrude into the water of the public swimming pool. Pools using 31 

recessed automatic Automatic surface skimmer or skimmers without a perimeter overflow 32 

system shall be installed so that the operating water level of the pool is no more than nine 33 

inches below the level of the finished deck. deck level so that the deck can be used as a 34 

handhold. 35 

(l)  Where flooded suction on the pump is not possible to prevent cavitation and loss of prime, skimmers shall have a 36 

device or other protection to prevent air entrainment in the suction line. Skimmer equalizer lines shall be in compliance 37 



6 of 6 

with ANSI/PHTA/ICC-7 or disabled. Skimmer The inlet to the equalizer line lines shall be disabled by plugging the 1 

line under the skimmer basket and where the equalizer pipe exits the pool shell. provided with a grate. 2 

(m)  Nothing in this Section shall preclude the use of a roll-out or deck-level type of swimming pool. Such designs 3 

shall conform to the general provisions relating to surface overflow systems. 4 

(n)(m)  Nothing in this Section shall preclude the use of a surface overflow system that combines both a perimeter 5 

overflow system and a recessed automatic surface skimmer or skimmers. skimmers that meet the requirements of this 6 

Rule. 7 

 8 

History Note: Authority G.S. 130A-282; 9 

Eff. May 1, 1991; 10 

Amended Eff. May 1, 2010; February 1, 2004; April 1, 1999; January 1, 1996; July 1, 1992. 1992; 11 

Readopted Eff. November 1, 2024. 12 
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Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: Commission for Public Health-Request for Changes

 

From: Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 19, 2024 3:01 PM 
To: Niehaus, Virginia <virginia.niehaus@dhhs.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: Commission for Public Health-Request for Changes 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
Once the minor change below is made to .2518, I intend to recommend approval of all the revised rules. 
 
Please submit the revised rules via email to oah.rules@oah.nc.gov no later than 5pm on March 22, 
2024.  The electronic copy must be saved as the oƯicial rule name  (XX NCAC XXXX).  Please include me 
on the email. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Travis C. Wiggs 
Rules Review Commission Counsel 
OƯice of Administrative Hearings 
Telephone: 984-236-1929 
Email: travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov 
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	Page 1, Line 5:  Should “and” be “or”? “And” is correct here. The use of “and” rather than “or” is because the agency would not consider a system that performs only one of the enumerated tasks to be an electronic poll book. Instead, it would need to b...
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	Page 1, Line 31-32: Recognized how? By what procedure? This reference in the Rule to a testing authority recognized by a federal agency primarily refers to the Voting System Test Laboratories (VSTL) accreditation program that is designed and operated ...
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	Page 2, Line 1:  “Approved” how? By whom? Is there a rule citation which can be entered? The State Board, when certifying an electronic poll book pursuant to its authority in 08 NCAC 04 .0402, will approve the peripherals that are used to operate the ...
	Page 2, Line 9: Define or delete “in a manner set forth by the State Board.”  The agency will agree to delete this language.
	Page 2, Line 21:  Define or delete “primary”. The agency will agree to delete this word.
	Page 2, Line 23:  Where is “State Network” defined? “State Network” is defined by statute as “any connectivity designed for the purpose of providing Internet Protocol transport of information for State agencies.” G.S. § 143B-1370(a)(5)g. The agency wi...
	Page 2, Line 23:  “Audited” by whom?  Can anyone produce the audit? An audit report of a business is understood to mean an audit conducted by an independent auditor (i.e., a third party). To make this clarification, and address the next request for a ...
	Page 2, Line 23: Is the report audited or is it an audit report of the fiscal year? The agency will clarify that it is an audit report showing the findings of an independent audit of the business for its most recent fiscal year. See response above for...
	Page 2, Line 27: Confirming that you want the “vendor’s financial statement[s]” not the manufacturers. The agency will revise this to be the “manufacturer’s” financial statement, which was the original intent.
	Page 3, Lines 20-25:  Consider making this its own paragraph. Is this a “requirement”? The agency agrees with this suggestion and will make the necessary revision.
	Page 3, Line 20:  Change “may” to “shall” or state the criteria which the Board will use in making its determination. The agency agrees to make this revision and use “shall” instead of “may.”
	Page 3, Line 21-22:  There need to be citations added here to the rules which require the information.  The Board cannot request information and penalize the vendor if the vendor fails to response unless that information is required by a rule. The inf...
	Page 3, Line 23: Define “irreparable deficiencies.”  By what criteria and process will be used to make this determination? By “irreparable” the agency means “not reparable.” Merriam-Webster, https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/irreparable (last...
	Page 4, Line 15:  Strike “and policies.”  See G.S. 150B-2(8a)l. The agency agrees to make this revision.
	Page 4, Lines 10-23:  Does this include subsequent amendments and editions?  See G.S. 150B-21.6. The intent for the sanitization and cryptographic module references was for them to include subsequent amendments and editions. The agency has made revisi...
	Page 4, Lines 15-23:  Explain how federal guidelines, which are not law, can be incorporated by reference pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.6.  NIST’s Guidelines for Media Sanitization are published after being developed by NIST in accordance with its statutor...
	Page 4, Line 28: To whom is the vendor submitting requested changes? A vendor submits requested changes to the State Board. The agency has made a clarifying addition as follows: “The vendor shall, upon request, assist in the State Board’s examination ...
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	08 NCAC 04 .0401             STANDARDS FOR CERTIFICATION OF eLECTRONIC POLL BOOKS
	(a)  As used in this Chapter, an “electronic poll book” is a system (including hardware, software, and firmware) used to check the registration of voters who appear to vote in person, to assign voters their correct ballots, and to record the voters’ c...
	(b)   A vendor applying for certification by the State Board of Elections of an electronic poll book shall, as part of the certification application, fulfill the following requirements:
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	08 NCAC 17 .0109 - Adopted by SBE 021524 - revised per RRC suggestions
	(a)  Identification Requirement for Absentee-by-Mail Ballots. Photo identification accompanying a voter's absentee ballot pursuant to G.S. 163-230.1(f1) is acceptable if it is a photocopy of a type of photo identification acceptable for voting purpose...
	(b)  Initial Review by County Board Staff. County board staff shall, upon receipt of a voter's absentee ballot application, determine whether the application is accompanied by a photocopy of photo identification that is acceptable under Paragraph (a) ...
	If staff identify any deficiency, they shall mail written notice of the deficiency to the voter within one business day of identifying the deficiency, informing the voter that the voter, the voter's verifiable legal guardian or near relative, or a per...
	(c)  Final Review by County Board. The county board shall, at the first meeting held pursuant to G.S. 163-230.1(f) after the application and ballot is received, proceed as follows:
	(1) If the voter has submitted a photocopy of their photo identification, the county board shall make its determination whether the identification is acceptable under Paragraph (a) of this Rule. A final determination that the photocopy of photo identi...
	(2) If the voter has completed an affidavit claiming an exception to the identification requirement pursuant to G.S. 163-166.16(d) and is otherwise eligible to vote, the county board may reject that person's ballot only if the county board unanimously...
	(3) If a voter's photocopy of photo identification or affidavit claiming an exception to the identification requirement pursuant to G.S. 163-166.16(d) is deemed deficient upon initial review under Paragraph (b) of this Rule, the county board shall res...

	(d)  Exception for Military and Overseas Voters. A covered voter who is casting a ballot pursuant to G.S. 163, Article 21A, Part 1 is not required to submit a photocopy of acceptable photo identification under Paragraph (a) of this Rule or claim an ex...
	(e)  Return of Original Form of Identification. If a voter sends their original form of photo identification in the container-return envelope, or if a voter or other person permitted to return the voter’s absentee ballot hand-delivers an absentee ball...

	NCSBE Response - Board of Elections Request for Technical Changes  Rule .0109
	AGENCY: N.C. State Board of Elections
	RULE CITATION: 08 NCAC 17 .0109
	DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT:  March 15, 2024
	The Rules Review Commission staff has completed its review of this Rule prior to the Commission's next meeting.  The Commission has not yet reviewed this Rule and therefore there has not been a determination as to whether the Rule will be approved.  Y...
	In reviewing this Rule, the staff recommends the following changes be made:
	Page 1, Line 9: Consider: “and the photograph depicts discernable facial features such that the depicted person could be identified if he or she appeared in person.” The agency appreciates this suggestion, which was also considered but not adopted dur...
	Page 1, Line 26-27:  Does the photocopy or affidavit need to be provided by or received by 5 P.M. on the business day  before the county canvass? The agency agrees to clarify that this is a receipt deadline.
	Page 1, Line 27:  Define “acceptable.” (This is where a definitions rule would be handy.) An acceptable photo ID is defined in Paragraph (a) of the Rule. This may not be necessary, but the agency would be agreeable to rephrasing to say, “the voter's p...
	Page 1, Line 27:  Claiming an exemption pursuant to what? G.S. 163-166.16? This is an “exception,” rather than an “exemption.” Exception is explained in the immediately preceding paragraph, so the agency did not believe reiteration here was necessary,...
	Page 1, Lines 31-32:  Does the photographic identification have to meet any standards? Paragraph (a)?  Does the affidavit not need to comply with G.S. 163-166.16?  I ask this because the rule states that they “shall be acceptable.”  It is unclear if t...
	Page 2, Line 19:  “…a physical means designed to provide actual notice…” is ambiguous.  Consider 26 NCAC 05 .0110(b). In the alternative, who will make the determination whether a means is “designed” to provide actual notice and what criteria will be ...
	Page 2, Lines 22-27:  What is the authority of the BOE to determine that a voter’s right to notice to be heard or present evidence is predicated on a finding  that the affidavit is false by a super or perhaps super-super majority? If the county board ...
	Page 2, Lines 22-27: When and by what procedure would the county board members determine the falsity of an affidavit prior to giving notice? When would this occur? The county board must meet weekly during the five weeks prior to election day to consid...
	Page 2, Line 33: What is a “covered voter”? That is a defined term in the statutory section identified in the sentence, Part 1 of Article 21A of Chapter 163. See G.S. 163‑258.2. To avoid confusion, the agency agrees to remove “covered,” since the Rule...
	Page 3, Line 4-8:  This sentence either has too few or too many words. The agency proposes to split the sentence into two sentences.
	Page 3, Line 10:  Explain the relevance of G.S. 163-166.7 and G.S. 163-229. G.S 163-166.7 requires the State Board to “promulgate rules for the process of voting,” a process which takes place using multiple methods of voting, including absentee by mai...

	NCSBE Response - Board of Elections Request for Technical Changes Rule .0101
	AGENCY: N.C. Board of Elections
	RULE CITATION: 08 NCAC 17 .0101
	DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT: March 15, 2024
	The Rules Review Commission staff has completed its review of this Rule prior to the Commission's next meeting.  The Commission has not yet reviewed this Rule and therefore there has not been a determination as to whether the Rule will be approved.  Y...
	In reviewing this Rule, the staff recommends the following changes be made:
	Page 4, Lines 6-7: What does the Board mean by “in the light most favorable to that person”?  RRC counsel is aware of the standard in a summary judgment proceeding which does not appear applicable in this non-adversarial setting. The phrase means if t...
	Page 4, Lines 29-31:  Does the procedure only apply in the event someone is voting a provisional ballot because “the voter’s record does not appear on the poll book”? Yes. That is because there is otherwise no other name to compare the ID’s name to.
	Page 4, Lines 32-33: Evidence of what? Evidence pertaining to the examination of the photo identification provided by the person presenting to vote, which is the context of this provision: “The election official examining photo identification provided...
	Page 4, Lines 32-33: Can the election official accept additional evidence volunteered or  is their analysis limited to the four corners? See G.S. 163-166.16(b). Yes, they may consider such volunteered evidence. See (a)(2), requiring consideration of t...
	Page 4, Lines 32-33:   Aren’t precinct judges “election officials”? Doesn’t this fly in the face of G.S. 163-88 which requires the judges’ “examination” of qualifications to vote? (This is where a definitions rule would be handy.) G.S. 163-88 pertains...
	Page 6, Lines 22-26:  What is the authority of the BOE to determine that a provisional voter’s right to notice to be heard or present evidence is predicated on a finding  that the affidavit is false by a super or perhaps super-super majority? If the c...
	Page 6, Lines 22-26:  When and by what procedure would the county board members determine the falsity of an affidavit prior to giving notice? When would this occur? During the post-election canvass period, county boards are required to meet between el...
	Page 6, Lines 22-26: Explain why this change post publication is not a substantial change pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.2(g). The changes post publication with regard to when notice is triggered are designed to avoid sending unwarranted notice to voters th...
	The agency isn’t certain if the question here pertains also to the change clarifying that the county board’s reason for finding falsity must be “specific” and “based only on facts and not speculation.” If so, the need for the board to identify a “reas...
	Page 7, Lines 7, 8, and 14:  Define “acceptable”. (This is where a definitions rule would be handy.) The acceptability of a photo ID is defined in Paragraph (a) of the Rule. The agency would be agreeable to rephrasing to say, “any other photo identifi...
	Page 7, Lines 12-16:  County Board members cannot ask the provisional voter any questions?  Are they too limited to the four corners of the identification presented? See Paragraph (b).  It would appear that the precinct judges have greater latitude in...
	Page 7, Lines 17-19: As determined by who? The County Board? Yes. The county board passes on the validity of provisional ballots. See G.S. 163-182.2(a)(4); G.S. 163‑182.17(c)(1). This is why in earlier sections of this subparagraph (e), the staff pers...
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	Chapter 18 - Environmental Health
	SUBCHAPTER 18A - SANITATION
	SECTION .2500 - PUBLIC SWIMMING POOLS
	15A NCAC 18A .2518 CIRCULATION SYSTEM
	(a)  Public swimming pools Pools shall be equipped with a water circulation system.
	(b)  The water capacity of the circulation system shall be sufficient to clarify and disinfect circulate and filter the entire volume of public swimming pool water four times or more in 24 hours. The water circulation system shall be operated 24 hours...
	(c)  The water circulation system piping shall be designed and installed with the necessary valves and pipes so that the flow from the public swimming pool shall can be from main drains or the surface overflow system. If both main drains and a surface...
	(d)  Piping shall be designed to reduce friction losses to a minimum and to carry the required quantity of water at a maximum velocity not to exceed six feet per second for suction piping and not to exceed 10 feet per second for discharge piping pipin...
	(e)  The water circulation system shall have include a strainer with a basket to prevent hair, lint, and other debris from reaching the pump. A The owner of the public swimming pool shall keep a spare strainer basket onsite at the public swimming pool...
	(f)  A swimming pool shall have a vacuum cleaning system shall be provided to remove debris and foreign material that settles to the bottom of the swimming pool. Where provided, integral Integral vacuum ports shall be located on the pool wall at least...
	(g)  A flow meter, rate-of-flow indicator, reading in liters or gallons per minute, shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. on the filtered water [line.] line and located so that the rate of circulation is indicated. The...
	(h)  A public swimming pool shall have a pump or pumps shall be provided with capacity to recirculate the public swimming pool water four times or more in 24 hours, hours. The pump or pumps shall not need to be primed, [primed or] and shall be so loca...
	(i)  Inlets. All public swimming pools shall be equipped with water return inlets. The water return inlets shall meet the following requirements:
	(j)  Drains. Drains shall not be required in public swimming pools when an alternate method to drain the pool is provided. Public swimming pools constructed without main drains shall be designed with water return inlets positioned to return water unif...
	(k)  Surface Overflow Systems. (1) Swimming Public swimming pools shall be provided with have a surface overflow system that is an integral part of the water circulation system and that consists of a built-in-place perimeter overflow system, a pre-fab...
	(l)  Where flooded suction on the pump is not possible to prevent cavitation and loss of prime, skimmers shall have a device or other protection to prevent air entrainment in the suction line. Skimmer equalizer lines shall be in compliance with ANSI/P...
	(m)  Nothing in this Section shall preclude the use of a roll-out or deck-level type of swimming pool. Such designs shall conform to the general provisions relating to surface overflow systems.
	(n)(m)  Nothing in this Section shall preclude the use of a surface overflow system that combines both a perimeter overflow system and a recessed automatic surface skimmer or skimmers. skimmers that meet the requirements of this Rule.








